VERSION 2.0 AUGUST 28, 2023

Apps for Greentree

INVENTORY REORDER WORKBENCH

APP NUMBER: 010002

Powered by:

MYOB Greentree

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Features	2
Important Notes	2
Other Requirements	2
User Instructions	3
Inventory Reorder workbench	3
Making changes to a saved selection	9
Using the workbench to generate orders	11
Changes to Pending Location Transfer Requests	13
Implementation Guide	15
App Installation	15
App Configuration	16
Other Greentree Configuration	20
Re-Order Strategy Maintenance	20
Re-Order Constant Maintenance	22
System Script for Lost Sales	22
User Maintenance	23

FEATURES

1. Inventory Reorder Workbench

The Inventory Reorder Workbench will dramatically increase the accuracy and speed of reordering.

- Review historic demand, and future commitments
- Select or modify the suggested reorder quantity for some or all products
- Works with existing Min/Max and economic order quantity settings
- Filter to reorder for a single supplier (e.g. ensure the container's always full)
- Try what-if scenarios and save the results to work on later
- Get funky and create "Reorder Strategies" that include complex calculations (e.g. to predict seasonal variations)
- Choose to restock one location from surplus stock at another location (requires the 010034 Inventory Location Transfers App)
- Choose whether to include inactive locations or not
- Choose whether purchase order are created for each combination of Supplier and Location

IMPORTANT NOTES

• We recommend that you test the configuration of the App thoroughly in a test system prior to deploying the App in your live Greentree system.

OTHER REQUIREMENTS

Greentree Modules: Inventory

Associated Apps: 010034 Inventory Location Transfers (recommended), 010066 Key Product Category

USER INSTRUCTIONS

INVENTORY REORDER WORKBENCH

Select the Menu Option Process | Inventory | Inventory Reorder Workbench

Note: If the option to Use Strategy Reordering is not selected in the Apps Module Control, then the Average Sales suggested reorder method indicated in red is used rather than Reorder Strategy.

If you wish to use Strategies and have the option of an Average Sales method, then you should turn on the module control Use Strategy Reordering, and then create a custom Strategy for Average Sales.

A configuration can be saved under a Description for later recall and reuse.

GT		Inve	ntory Reorde	er Workbench		_
	ICK A	$@ \leftarrow \leftarrow -$	$\rightarrow \rightarrow \mid$		Ě	$\neg \Rightarrow AFG \bigcirc \mathbb{Q} \not \supset \mathscr{O} \land \textcircled{1} ?$
Description	Q		Entered	i by		
Stock Item Select	ion			All Supplier		—
	From	То		Select by Su		Use Tree Selection
Inventory Code	010024	ک z-ZZ.LH	\odot			Trees
Analysis Code	BUYIN	VIDEO	Q			
Location	02	All Location	ns 🔽 Multiple			
Selected Locations	02					
Status		λ		O Select by Su	pplier Currency	
Select by Branch	n			O All Supplier	Excluding	
 Include Stock It Include Stock It Include Stock It Include Stock It Include Indent Include Hold ar 	s cover s cover tems with no suggested re tems with a backorder qua tems with preferred suppli stock items VInclude F nd Do not Commit in Backo	order quantity ntity er only orward Orders order	Suggested R	der Quantity to leorder method	 Suggested Suggested (Rounded to Ec Zero Reorder Strateg: MIN/MAX Required Only Inventory Current Period Selected Period 	onomical)
Exclude on-ord	n Transfers Expand L nal cover for Key Product S ler quantity from Balance Orders not commited					<u>C</u> lear Search <u>N</u> ow

Selections:

Inventory Code From and To	The process will default to all stock items in the system, if you want to narrow down the items being reordered based on code then select the code range for reorders here.
Analysis Code From and To	You can process a reorder for a single Analysis Code by selecting it here or for a range. The default is all analysis codes.

Location	This will default to the Location specified in IN Module control unless the "All Locations" was ticked in the Control settings. The reorder workbench can be run for all locations or a specific stocking location. This affects both the demand/sales and the quantities on hand and suggested for reorder. Clicking on Multiple will cause another box to appear for entry of Selected Locations. Use the Location dropdown to select valid locations to add into Selected Locations. Also see Apps Control setting for whether inactive locations will be included.
Status	To select all stock items on a specific status, drop down and select the status otherwise all statuses are included.
Select by Branch	If ticked you are then able to select a branch. This will cause the reorder calculation to be based on all locations for that branch.
Select by Supplier	There are alternative ways to select suppliers. The supplier selection is a means to inventory selection because of the Inventory-Supplier relationship.
	If Select by Supplier ticked you then get additional fields to allow you to select a specific supplier. The reorder process will then only calculate for stock items where that supplier has been set up under Supplier details for that stock item. Selections can be made by Code, Alpha, Name or for only when selected supplier is flagged as Preferred Supplier.
Select by Supplier Currency	If ticked you are then able to select a currency. This will be used to select suppliers.
All Supplier Excluding	If ticked you are then able to select suppliers from the Select by Supplier inputs to add to a list of suppliers to exclude. You are able to simply add as a comma separated list of supplier codes.
Use Tree Selection	If ticked you are then able to select trees. This will limit inventory items belonging to selected trees to be included.
Reorder Selection	
Number of Months Cover	Type in the number of months of stock you want to have on hand at any time. This is used to determine what the suggested reorder quantity should be. This is only use if the Reorder method is set to Average Sales.

Type in the number of months of demand history you want to display in the reorder workbench.

Number of Months to Calculate Demand History

Type in the number of months' historical demand you want to use for calculating the Average Sales. This is only used if the Reorder method is set to Average Sales.

Include stock items with no suggested reorder

If you have entered a Stock Item Selection based on analysis code, ticking this option will result in all stock items for that analysis code being displayed even if you have plenty of stock.

Include Stock Items with a backorder quantity

If selected the calculation of demand will include all backorders – this is recommended.

Include stock items with preferred supplier only

Only selects items on which a preferred supplier has been set. If
the Stock Item Selection Option Include only where preferred
supplier has been set, it will be unnecessary to also select this
option.

Include Indent Stock Items Indent items will be included if they match other selection criteria. If Indent items are always linked to a Sales Order you would not want to include them in the process.

Include Forward Orders If selected then forward orders will be included in the demand calculation.

Include Hold and Do not commit in Backorder

If selected then the calculation of demand will include any quantities on forward order even if the stock is not committed.

Include Location Transfers If the Location Transfers App is in use, then include stock currently committed to a location transfer.

Expand Locations Expands the results in the clever table to show all locations.

Include additional cover for Key Product Stock

If the optional App 010066 Key Product Category is installed, then selecting this option will add the pre-set additional cover for those products identified by the Key Product Category App.

Exclude on-order quantity from Balance

If there is a quantity on an order which has not yet shipped,

ticking this box excludes the on-order quantity from the balance of available stock.

Include factory orders not committed

If there is a quantity on a factory order which is not yet committed, ticking this box includes the quantity in the balance of available stock.

Default Reorder Quantity

The workbench has columns for both Suggested Reorder and Reorder Quantity – the Reorder Quantity is what will be used on any generated purchase orders.

Choose whether the Reorder Quantity should default to Suggested (system recommendation based on calculations and criteria specified), Suggested (Rounded to Economic Order Qty) or Zero – in which case the user will have to type a quantity next to all items they are wanting to order.

Default Reorder Method

The workbench will default to the selected method which is used to calculate the Suggested Reorder Quantity.

Average Sales	This method uses the "Number of Months Cover" and "Number of Months to Calculate Demand History" parameters to suggest reorder quantities.
Min/Max	This method uses Minimum and Maximum stock quantities per location setup on each stock item. A reorder quantity will be suggested for all items to bring them up to their Maximum.
Required Only	The workbench will only suggest a reorder for items that have negative available.
Starting Period to Base Average	e Sales on Inventory Current Period
	If selected then the current month will be included in calculated average sales. This should be used if you are nearing the end of the month.
Selected Period	If selected you can then enter a date to base the average sales
	on. This works with the Number of months cover – the system will calculate Average sales based on this month plus the number of months specified.

Select the tree and branches to be used for the reorder process – all stock items belonging to that tree and branches will be calculated.

Search Now The system will perform the reorder calculations based on selections and display the recommended reorders in the table below.

Reorder Table

+ CodeAcastice	Description	Andrea	LON!	Pad-10M	Galler	Sounded.	Children .	Quillaber	Do Star	Ration/Fulfale	(Mag)	44	Ref. 1	Fell 2	ni Davi	Constant.	14-24	Newlay	Ter-De-	Sugar De Cauch	CyPetracTigate
+ IOBADPENT/MONITORI	Aligen 1711 U.D. Monitor	MONETO	关系	EA	- 78	75	- 34	17	0	12	- 11	12	4		1. 1	1 2	1	9.	. 7		IICorpute and Path Hat
+ OF INTELDORSEBS2	Intel Dual Core Desktop	MARCO	EA .	EA	112	2	162		0	- 46	- 6	10	- 41		1.1	6 4	- 6	- 0	1		0
+ ICEM SEMPHANIZ	MSI Dual Care Deskips	MANED	EA.	£A.		0	. 4	16	0	50	6	1	0		8 0	1 1		- 0			6
+ ACER(7LD)	Auge 17" LED Monitor	LCD	EA.	EA		16	51	11	0	- 50	1		- 0		1.1	1 2	- 6	- 0	1		Couple and Fat. Vial.
+ AOPENAWTHILSCAPID	Allgen 4 Channel Soundhard	50J40	EA.	£4		0			0	28	1	1	0		8 4	1 15		- 0	- 8	2	2
+ TELLUNGI THERENFET	Talkey 17" Scane Film	MONTO	64	ΞA.	94		- 26		- 0		- 6	1	- 6	1	1		- 6		- 1		1
+ 200MAC/DC1/6	Eval Dow 1 80Hs Sortem	NAED	EA.	£4		103	600	- 6	0		1	1	0		8 0	1 8	- 6	- 0	- 4	108	800

The table displays information that might be relevant when reviewing suggested reorder quantities.

The number of months displayed will be that selected.

The Reorder Qty column is editable. If the user wants to alter the suggested quantity and order something different, they should type the required quantity into this column. You can type and use the down arrow key to navigate to the next item.

If there is a Preferred Supplier specified for the stock Item their name will be displayed.

Quotes

"On Quote" column shows quantities that are on active CRM Quotes.

Quotes will be included if the Quote Stage has been defined as Active.

Т	Quote	Stage Maint	enance		_ □	\sim			
	1 C K	# @ ⊬	$\leftarrow \rightarrow \rightarrow \mid$	∽ afg ⊖ 🗓) <i>†ø &</i>	?			
ode DRAFT	Q Description)raft only							
Active	Inactive Won	OLost	Confidence %	5.00					
_	lated Job status to	Lost		5.00					
	lated S/R status to		✓ for		~				
	lated S/R types to		√ for		~				
Link all S/R	to the Quotes related j	ob							
Asset selec	tion on linked Service R	equest is mand	latory						
Valid Quote	Types								
 ✓ Sales ✓ Job ✓ Return ✓ Service 	 Counter Sale Refund Event Donation Pledge 								
			First Quote Stage of	7					
Deady									
	₫ C % ф			•				Quot	e Mainte
		# @ ⊬						Quot	e Mainte
		ੴ (← Summary Kan	$\leftarrow \rightarrow \rightarrow$		Receipt		Service Re		e Mainte
mber 1136 Main	<u></u>	& @ ← Summary Kan	$\leftarrow ightarrow ightarrow$ gan Education Unit	Sales		Primary			e Mainto
Imber 1135 Main Organisation	C Line Item	& @ ← Summary Kan	$\leftarrow ightarrow ightarrow$ gan Education Unit Delivery Address	Sales	~ []Q	Primary Locked			e Mainto
Main Organisation Contact	C Line Item	A @ ← Summary Kan s	$\leftarrow ightarrow ightarrow$ gan Education Unit Delivery Address Type		- - Q 21 開	Locked Authori	ty		e Mainte
Main Organisation Contact Lead	C Line Item	A @ K- Summany Kan s nit Q Q	← → → gan Education Unit Delivery Address Type Price Book	Sales	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Locked	ty		e Mainto
Main Organisation Contact Lead Reseller	C Line Item	A Ø ← Summary Kan s nit Q Q	← → → gan Education Unit Delivery Address Type Price Book Created	Sales	→ Q 21 曲 曲	Locked Authori Sighted Approve	ty ed		e Mainto
Main Organisation Contact Lead Reseller Campaign	C Line Item	A Ø ← Summary Kan s nit Q Q Q	← → → gan Education Unit Delivery Address Type Price Book Created Date Sent	Sales	21 ## 21 ##	Locked Authori Sighted Approve Invoice Reseller	ty ed		e Mainte
Main Organisation Contact Lead Reseller Campaign Activity	C Line Item	AB @ ← Summary Kan s nit Q Q Q Q	← → → gan Education Unit Delivery Address Type Price Book Created Date Sent Expected	Sales	21 🛱 2 21 🛱 2 21 🛱 2 21 🛱 2 21 🛱 2	Locked Authori Sighted Approve Invoice Reseller Private	ty ed		e Mainto
mber 1136 Main Organisation Contact Lead Reseller Campaign Activity Sales Person	Line Item:	A @ ← Summary Kan s nit Q Q Q Q Q Q	← → → gan Education Unit Delivery Address Type Price Book Created Date Sent Expected Expires	Sales	21 🛱 2 21 🛱 2 21 🛱 2 21 🛱 2 21 🛱 2	Locked Authori Sighted Approve Invoice Reseller	ty ed		e Mainte
Main Organisation Contact Lead Reseller Campaign Activity Sales Person Stage	Line Item: Kangan Education Ur	A @ ← Summary Kan s nit Q Q Q Q Q Q	← → → gan Education Unit Delivery Address Type Price Book Created Date Sent Expected Expires Won/Lost	Sales	21 🛱 2 21 🛱 2 21 🛱 2 21 🛱 2 21 🛱 2	Locked Authori Sighted Approve Invoice Reseller Private	ty ed		e Mainte
mber 1136 Main Organisation Contact Lead Reseller Campaign Activity Sales Person Stage Currency	Line Item: Kangan Education Ur Line Item: Sally Scoresby (SSc) Draft only	A @ K- Summary Kan s nit © © 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	← → → gan Education Unit Delivery Address Type Price Book Created Date Sent Expected Expires Won/Lost Confidence % Order Number	Sales	21 🛱 2 21 🛱 2 21 🛱 2 21 🛱 2 21 🛱 2	Locked Authori Sighted Approve Invoice Reseller Private	ty ed		e Mainte
mber 1135 mber 1135 Main Organisation Contact Lead Reseller Campaign Activity Sales Person Stage Currency Rate	Line Item: Kangan Education Ur Line Item: Sally Scoresby (SSc) Draft only New Zealand Dollars	A @ K- Summary Kan s nit Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q	← → → gan Education Unit Delivery Address Type Price Book Created Date Sent Expected Expires Won/Lost Confidence % Order Number	Sales	21 🛱 2 21 🛱 2 21 🛱 2 21 🛱 2 21 🛱 2	Locked Authori Sighted Approve Invoice Reseller Private	ty ed		e Mainte
Main Organisation Contact Lead Reseller Campaign Activity Sales Person Stage Currency Rate Branch otal	Line Item: Kangan Education Un Sally Scoresby (SSc) Draft only New Zealand Dollars 1.0000000	A a a k a c a c a c a c a c a c a c a c a	← → → gan Education Unit Delivery Address Type Price Book Created Date Sent Expected Expires Won/Lost Confidence % Order Number	Sales	21 🛱 2 21 🛱 2 21 🛱 2 21 🛱 2 21 🛱 2	Locked Authori Sighted Approve Invoice Reseller Private	ty ed		e Mainte
mber 1136 mber 1136 Main Organisation Contact Lead Reseller Campaign Activity Sales Person Stage Currency Rate Branch Otal Discount	Line Item: Kangan Education Ur Sally Scoresby (SSc) Draft only New Zealand Dollars 1.0000000 01 (Auckland)	A Ø K- Summary Kan s nit Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q V Fixe S IS	 ← → → gan Education Unit Delivery Address Type Price Book Created Date Sent Expected Expires Won/Lost Confidence % Order Number d Inv/Order No 	Sales	21 #	Locked Authori Sighted Approve Invoice Reseller Private Web Ac	ty ed 	equests <u>Pricing</u>	
T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T	Line Item: Kangan Education Un Sally Scoresby (SSc) Draft only New Zealand Dollars 1.0000000 01 (Auckland) 0.00 Net unt/Code Descripti	A Ø K- Summary Kan s nit Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q V Fixe S 15	← → → gan Education Unit Delivery Address Type Price Book Created Date Sent Expires Won/Lost Confidence % Order Number d Inv/Order No	Sales	21 #	Locked Authori Sighted Approve Invoice Reseller Private Web Ac	ty ed	equests Pricing Code Tax9 ST 15.0	6 Amoun 0 18110.20

+ Code/Location	Description	Analysis UC	DM Purchase UOM	On Hand	Committed	Available	On Order	On Ship	Backorder	In Transit	On Quote	otal Excess	May	Apr	Mar	Feb	Jan	Dec	Nov	Oct 1	Sep A	Aug	Jul J	iun M
17MONITOR	A0pen 17 ^m LCD Monitor																							0
01				96	169		0	44	3	-100018	5	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 :
02				649	143		0	134	10	100001	0	506	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
03.201				26	111		0	0	0	-11	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
03.Z02				100	4		0	0	0	-13	0	96	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
04				99	1		0	20	0	0	0	98	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
10AK.FRGT				4	0		0	0	0	6	0	4	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
30CH.BULK				15	123		5300	17822	22	-8	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
A02.RM				0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
AK				500	69		-2	81	0	24	0	431	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
HN				4294	4132		499363	446	500107	-10	6	158	0	0	0	0	0	0	46	0	0	0	0	0

Purchase Order Details

This section is used when creating orders from the workbench.

MAKING CHANGES TO A SAVED SELECTION

The table contains the stock items that meet the selection criteria at the time the Inventory Reorder was saved (as per the "Last Modified" displayed at the top of the screen).



Changing the selection criteria will clear the table and the "Last Modified" date (it will change to <now>). When an Inventory Reorder is saved, the Stock Items that satisfy the selection criteria are saved, and Last Modified date repopulated.

When the "Search Now" button is clicked, the search criteria will be applied immediately.

If the "Search Now" button has not been clicked following the last change to the criteria, a search is performed when the "Save" icon is clicked.

The Load Saved Search button loads the table as it was last saved. Depending on the app configuration the table will automatically load the saved results or not

GT		I	nventory	Reorder Wo	rkbench					_ 0 X
	∎C%	#@⊬ <	$ \rightarrow $	\rightarrow		Ě			- AFG 🕞	▣ፇ₽∆⊙
Description	01MIS 2022-08-01				Q	Last m	odified SUP	ER 16 Sept	ember 2022,	08:02:50
Stock Item Sel	ection									
	From	То			All St	uppliers			🗸 Use Tr	ee Selection
Inventory Code	ACER17LCD	◯ z-ZZ.LH		Q	Selection	t by Supplier			I	rees
Analysis Code	BUYIN			à						
Location		All Locatio	ns Mu	Itiple Transf	er					
Status		0			🔿 Selec	t by Supplier	Currency			
Select by Bra	nch	~				uppliers Exclu	ding			
Reorder Select										
Number of mon		2	Default	Reorder Quanti	ty to 💿 Sug	gested				
Number of mon	ths demand history to di	splay 13			~ •		ded to Econo	mical)		
	ths to calculate average s				() <u>Z</u> er	0				
Include Stoc	k Items with no suggeste k Items with a backorder k Items with preferred su	quantity	Suggest	ed Reorder met	<u> </u>	ra <u>q</u> e sales n/Max quired Onl <u>y</u>				
 Include inde Include Hold Include Loca Include addi 	ent stock items Inclu d and Do not Commit in E ation Transfers Expa itional cover for Key Prod	ide Forward Orders Backorder nd Locations uct Stock	Starting	Period for Avg		entory Curren [:] ecte <u>d</u> Period	t Period			
	order quantity from Balar ory Orders not commited									
medderae	ory orders not committed					_				
						Lo <u>a</u>	d saved search	i Seai	rch <u>N</u> ow	<u>C</u> lear
Purchase Order		Line Location) Use Prefe	rred Supplier				_		
Location				ted Supplier				Create	Shipments	Create <u>P</u> Os
Order Date 28 / 0	8 / 2023 🟥 Exp Date 2	8/08/2023 <u>□</u> We	ight	0.00 Volume	0.00	Value	9368.50			
+ Code/Location	Description		Analysis	ИОМ	Purchase UON	1 On Hand	Committed	Available	On Order	On Ship Backor
+ ACERCDRJEWE	L80M Acer 40x CD-RW	Drive	MEDIA	EA	EA	22	0	22	4	0
+ ALTEC220WSPE	AKERS Altec 220 Watt Sp	eakers	BUYIN	EA	EA	93	20	53	17	0
+ AOPEN19LCD	AOpen 19'' LCD M	fonitor	LCD	EA	EA	135	1	127	0	105
+ AOPENH340DSL	IMCASE AOpen Quad Core	slimline System	NOTEBO	EA	EA	92	0	92	0	0
	U. CACE AD Durate	· · · · · · · · · · · ·	DUS2IM	F &	F A		0		0	•
Ready					Inventory Red	order 2 of 109				

Multiple changes can be made and Search Now used.

Only when the Save icon is clicked will the Last modified be populated.

GT						Inventory Re	order Wo
00	₫ C %	$\mathbb{A} \circledcirc \vdash \leftarrow \rightarrow \rightarrow$		Ě			
Description	01MI5_2022-08-01		Q	Last modified	SUPER 04 August	2022, 10:56:35	
Stock Item Sel	ection						
	From	То		Suppliers		Use Tree Selection	
		10	 Sele 	ect by Supplier		Trees	
Inventory Code	ACER17LCD	C z-ZZ.LH	ି Code	2000 🔍 Alpha	a APL 🔍	-	
Analysis Code	BUYIN	Q VIDEO	Q Name	Allied Petroleum	\odot		
Location		🗸 🔽 All Locations 📃 Mul	Itiple Transfer I	include only where pref	erred supplier		

USING THE WORKBENCH TO GENERATE ORDERS

Once you are satisfied with the Re-order Quantities, you can use the workbench to generate the purchase orders.

Location	Select the location that is to be used for the purchase orders – where the stock will be receipted to.
Use Line Location	When ticked this allows one purchase order to be created for each combination of Supplier and Location.
Use Primary Location	When ticked the location that will be used for the purchase orders – where the stock will be receipted to, will be based on the stock item's primary location if available.

Select whether all stock is to be ordered from the preferred supplier for each stock item or whether all stock is to be ordered from one nominated supplier.

Use Preferred supplier	Ensure that each inventory item with a reorder quantity has a preferred supplier displayed next to it.
Use Selected supplier	Select the supplier from the drop down which displays the code, alpha and name.
Order date	Defaults to today but can be altered if required and will be the document date of the generated purchase order(s).
Expected Date	Defaults to today but can be altered if you know the lead time from the supplier – only one date is available via the re-order workbench so if you are using the preferred suppliers and they have different lead times, you will need to edit the expected date once the purchase orders have been generated.
Create Shipments	Click this button to create a shipment linked to multiple purchase orders, supplying the reorder quantity taken from the oldest outstanding order first. One shipment will be created coming from multiple suppliers. If you want a separate shipment per supplier, then Supplier should be selected at the top of the re-order workbench first. An initial popup allows for entry of the Reference and Description for the PO Shipment details.

Reference Description Date 100251.01 Generated from Reorder Workbench generate two 13/02/2014	Ġ Genera	-+>		
Too251.01 Generated from Neorder Workbench generate two 15/02/2014			and the second se	
			1.0.02.2011	

Shipe	nent	1	elect Orders	Line	Items	Ad	ditional Charges		Import	Duty charges	Create BFC
Order No	100254			lo 1	Next	Line Typ	e Inventory				Create Receip
Inventory Code	10000	,		Description	Test 3id Box	n Product					Erint Shipmen
Location				Unit of Measure		ITT IVALUA					Reverse Recei
Supplier Pa			-	ora or medicare	ALC: NO						Create Invoic
Ordered	13/12/	2010	Status	Shipped	Sur	oplier Di	sci.wood IT Took				
Data Qty Exp'd	10.0000		Cost(Tax Excl)		Line Total		444.44		(LC)	444.44	Serial Number
Container			Crate		Expected	Date 1	/ 12/ 2013	Overheads	ILCI	0.00	
Nariation	Black.woo	d IT Tools						Addi Charge	.0.0	0.00	Label gption
Qty Ord	20.0000		Value Ord	008.07	Qty Outsta	nding 10	0000	Proof Charge	(00)		
								Landed Cost	(LC)	444.64	Cancel Line
ot Ord (LC)		9479.1	O'heads (LC)		0 00 Charges	(LC)	0.0	Shipment	(LC)	9479.16	
oder/Line 00251/1	Type	Company	Account/Code/. 100004	lob Description Some nam	Trans		ubCode/Loc/Ac	EA	Centre	Date Ordere Status 10/02/2014 Shippe	
00254/1	IN		100007	Test 3rd Buyl	and all the state of the second se		2	EA		13/12/2015 Shippe	
00256/1	IN		100007	Test 3rd Buyl	n Prodi	0	2	EA		13/02/2014 Shippe	

Create PO's

Click this button to have the system generate the required purchase order(s).

Genera	sted Purchase	Orders									
Dider No	Supplier Code	Suppler Name	Status	Expected D	Branch	Location	Order Date	Print	Emai	Email Address	
100069	2000	Computer and Parts Mai	r Entered	23/9/2011	02	02	23/5/2011	P	P	sales@cpm.com	() 1
											(b
								JK.	1.0	Dirk	Email
								er	. L	Car	Fursi

A pop-up window is displayed giving the details of the purchase order number, supplier, status, expected date, branch and location for each purchase order generated.

Print	If this box is ticked and you then click the print button each of those purchase orders will be printed.
Email	If this box is ticked and there is a valid email address, when you click the email button an email will be sent to each address with the purchase order attached.
ОК	Click this button to close the pop-up. You are then able to edit the purchase orders via Purchase Order Entry if required.

Possible Error Messages

1. If you have chosen Preferred supplier and an item does not have a Preferred supplier setup an error will be displayed. You can click Ok on the error, double click to the stock item and setup the preferred supplier and then try to generate again.



2. If you have forgotten to select a location for the purchase order an error will be displayed.

The default location in the document header is required

CHANGES TO PENDING LOCATION TRANSFER REQUESTS

When creating Location Transfer Requests from the IN Reorder Workbench, additional lines might be added to existing Pending location requests between the specified locations, or the quantities on existing lines might be changed.

An IN Reorder Workbench - Don't change Pending transfers option on the Location Transfer Request Control form for App 010034 can be used to control this. When checked, this option prevents The IN Reorder Workbench changing Pending Location Transfer Requests.

IMPLEMENTATION GUIDE

Please refer to the Important Notes section above before installing and configuring this App.

APP INSTALLATION

- 1. Log into Greentree as the Super user
- 2. Select the menu item | System | Apps For Greentree | Apps Module Control |
- 3. Either enter the New Registration Codes supplied and click Install App or click the Check for Purchased Apps button to display a list of apps recently purchased or renewed to install in bulk.

GT		Apps For Gre	entree	Module Control				×
	8 0 %	: # Ø						S AF6 🕞 🗊 🖉 🖉 🕜
Enter N	ew Registration Code	Install Ap	p	Check for Purchase	d Apps	Delete Inactive	Expired Apps	Uninstall Apps For Greentree
	Filter Apps	yiew Addi	15		_			
Code	Name	Description	Active	Expiry Date	User Cour	t Settings	App Count	-
000000	Apps For Greentree Form	App Usage information on Forms	₹	31 December 2099	0-Edit Us	ers		1
010001	AR Sales Orders Tab	Tab in Customer maintenance to display Sales Ord	1	23 June 2020	100-Edit	Use		
010002	IN Reorder Workbench	Inventory Reorder Workbench	•	25 June 2021	100-Edit	Use Change		1
010003	IN Min/Max Workbench	Inventory Min/Max Workbench	~	30 June 2040	100-Edit	Use Change		1
010004	AR Sales History Tab	Tab in Customer maintenance to display Sales His	1	31 December 2099	100-Edit	Use		1
010005	AR/IN Pricing Tab	Pricing Tab in Customer and Inventory Maintenand	1	28 May 2021	0-Edit Us	ers]
010006	Transaction UDF	Tab in Transaction Entry for Custom UDF Fields	2	31 December 2099	100-Edit	Use Change		1
		L	-	1				1 1

4. Select/Highlight the Inventory Reorder Workbench App.

GT			Apps For Greentree Me	odule Control				_ C	x u
		: A @					∽¶ AFG ⊕		₫ @
Enter N	lew Registration Code		Install App		Delete Inac	tive/Expired Apps	<u>U</u> ninstall	Apps For Gree	ntree
	Filter Apps		View Audits						
Code	Name	Description		Active	Expiry Date	User Count	Settings	App Count	1 i
000000	Apps For Greentree Form	App Usage information on Fo	ems	1	31 December 2099	0.Edit Urerr			
010001	AR Sales Orders Tab	Tab in Customer maintenance to display Sales Orders		2	31 December 2099	100-Edit Users			
010002	IN Reorder Workbench	Inventory Reorder Workbenc	h	1	31 December 2099	TOU-EUR USERS	Change		1

5. Click on the Edit Users button and select the users who will be configured to use Inventory Reorder Workbench, for which companies.

GT	App	For Greentree Man	ager App User Acce	55	_ □
g	0 %	fi @		P	AFG 🕞 🗊 🤣 🖉 🕂
User Count Limit	100	• Users • Teams			
User	e-Computers - Australi	e-Computers - Canada	e-Computers - USA (05)	e-Computers - NZ (06)	e-Computers - UK (07)
All Users					
001 EDI AK		v			
001 EDI HN		V		Γ	V

- 6. Once you have selected the users, Save the settings, and Close the window.
- 7. Save and Close the Module Control form.

APP CONFIGURATION

Still within the Apps for Greentree Module Control, click the Change button beside the Inventory Re-Order Workbench App, which will launch the IN Reorder Workbench Control form below.

GT		IN Workb	ench Control	×
		Ð		∽ AFG ⊖ 🗊 🤣 & ⚠ ?
Number of Months				in demand history data
Default Reorder Q		merau	Default Reorder Meth	
Suggested	nded To Economic Order Qt	у)	Reorder Strategy Min/Max Required Only	
Include Stock Ite Include Stock Ite Include Indent S	d Do not commit in Backord	ity only		t' and Total Value if no access to Inventory Cost Reference and Description entry der
	iions ils Location to users Defaul Orders not commited	t	Warn only 'Min Qty' Force Save before G Default PO Primary Ignore Available in 1	enerating
Results Columns Include Manual Hide Demand in	Average Sales From Location for Transfer	Grouping 1	Tree C28836	~
✓ Use Strategy Red ✓ Don't auto-load				
Demand History Mo	onths	36		
Budget Months		13		
Strategy Months		12		
Lost Sales Status Sales Status 2			Optimise script last run	27/10/2015
Sales Status 2	Order Confirmatio	999 998		
		550		

Number of Months Cover

Type in the number of months stock you want to have on hand at any time. This is used to determine what the suggested reorder quantity should be.

Numbe	r of Months Demand Hi	Type in the number of months of demand history you want to
		display in the reorder workbench.
Numbe	r of Months to Calculate	e Demand History Type in the number of months historical demand you want to use for calculating the Average Sales. This is only use if the Reorder method is set to Average Sales.
Show V	Veight and Volume Infor	mation
		Tick this box to have weight and volume displayed in the reorder workbench. This will show both unit values and extended value – multiplied by Reorder Quantity.
Include	inactive stock locations	in demand history data Tick this box to have stock locations that are currently
		inactive, to be included.
		This is applicable in the calculation of reorder quantities only when default reorder method is Average Sales.
		When ticked, all locations with stock will be included in results.
Default	Reorder Quantity	The workbench has columns for both Suggested Reorder and Reorder Quantity – the Reorder Quantity is what will be used on any generated purchase orders.
		Choose whether the Reorder Quantity should default to:
	Suggested	System recommendation based on calculations and criteria specified
	Suggested (Rounded to	Economic Order Qty)
		System recommendation based on calculations and criteria specified rounded to EOQ
	Zero	In which case the user will have to type a quantity next to all items they are wanting to order.
Default	Reorder Method	The workbench will default to the selected method which is used to calculate the Suggested Reorder Quantity.
	Average Sales	This method uses the "Number of Months Cover" and "Number of Months to Calculate Demand History" parameters to suggest reorder quantities.
	Min/Max	This method uses Minimum and Maximum stock quantities per location setup on each stock item. A reorder quantity will be suggested for all items to bring them up to their Maximum.
	Required Only	The workbench will only suggest a reorder for items that have negative available.

Include stock items with no suggested reorder

In the workbench if you select by analysis code, ticking this option will result in all stock items for that analysis code being displayed even if you have plenty of stock.

Include stock items with a backorder quantity

Ticking this option will result in all stock items with a backorder quantity being included in demand calculations. Include stock items with preferred supplier only

	Ticking this option selects items on which a preferred supplier has been set. If the Stock Item Selection Option Include only where preferred supplier has been set, it will be unnecessary to also select this option.
Include Indent Stock Items	Indent items will be included in the workbench if they match other selection criteria. If Indent items are always linked to a Sales Order you would not want to include in the Reorder Workbench.
	and the product of the

Include Hold and Do not commit in Backorder

	If selected then the calculation of demand will include any quantities on forward order even if the stock is not committed.
Include Location Transfers	If ticked then if the Location Transfers App is in use, then include stock currently committed to a location transfer.
Default All Locations	If selected the workbench will default to calculating the reorder across all locations. If each location is responsible for their own reordering, then do not select this option.
Show UDFs	If selected then the table in the reorder workbench will include a column for all user defined fields specified against stock items.
Default PO Details Location to u	iser's default If ticked the reorder workbench will default in the Default Location from the Purchase Order button and Defaults tab of User Maintenance specified for the user running the workbench.
Hide Line 'Unit Cost' and 'Total	Value' if no access to inventory Cost data
	If ticked the reorder workbench form will not show values.
Allow PO Shipment Reference a	and Description entry
	If ticked then when creating PO Shipment, a popup will allow entry of a Reference and Description
Include Forward Orders	If selected then forward orders will be included in the demand calculation.

Expand Locations	If ticked then the results will be expanded in a clever table showing all locations						
Warn only Min Qty when transferring							
	If ticked will cause a warning message to show in the workbench if a transfer amount would make the balance less than minimum.						
Force Save before Generating	If ticked, the Reorder Workbench will be saved before the Purchase Orders or Location Transfers are generated. The user will be required to enter a Reference for the Workbench if it has been left blank.						
Default PO Primary Location	If ticked then the reorder workbench will default the use of Use Primary Location for Purchase Orders.						
Results Columns	Options for displaying results						
Include Manual Averag	e Sales						
	If ticked the results columns will include Manual Average Sales and Cover columns						
Grouping Tree	Select from dropdown of trees						
Use Strategy Reordering	If you wish to define your own Customized Re-Order Strategies then tick this option. The following four settings will then become visible. These settings define the Properties which will be available to create your strategies with, see Reorder Strategy Maintenance below.						
Don't auto-load saved results	If ticked then when reloading a reorder skeleton, and previously generated results will not automatically load. (Note however that the prior results can be loaded by clicking a button to do so – Load Saved Search).						
Demand History Months	Number of months demand history to make available when writing Strategy Calculations						
Budget Months	Only Relevant If IN Budgets are in use						
Strategy Months	Number of strategy months to make available when writing Strategy Calculations						
Lost Sales Status	Use this option if you wish to include the quantity of sales that were lost, when determining the quantity to re-order (i.e. for instance this could be orders that were cancelled because you did not have sufficient stock to supply).						
	For this to work, all Lost Sales must be entered as a Sales Order which is then closed with this status when the Sales Order is cancelled.						

Note: see below for information on scheduling the system script "Optimize Reorder Workbench" to calculate and store Lost Sales data for use with this option.

OTHER GREENTREE CONFIGURATION

RE-ORDER STRATEGY MAINTENANCE

The App allows you to set up a range of Re-Order Strategies which can be used to calculate

- 1. Select the menu item | System | Inventory | IN Reorder Strategy Maintenance |
- 2. Give each Strategy a Code and Description of your choice.
- 3. Then construct your Strategies using mathematical calculations and symbols, in conjunction with properties selected from the list on the right. (Double click on the Properties to add them into your calculation).

Notes:

- The number of months that will be available in this list is based on the numbers you entered within the IN Reorder Workbench Control form.
- Only Strategies ticked as Active will be used in the workbench.
- You can test your calculation by selecting a stock code from the drop-down box and clicking Test.

Reorder Strategy Examples

1. This example shows a simple Strategy using the average of the last 3 months Demand History.

бт	IN Re-order Strategy Mainte	enance _ \Box X
		$- \rightarrow \rightarrow \neg \neg AFG \bigcirc \bigcirc ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ? $
Code	3MthAve Q	Use in Reorde
Description	3 Month Average	✓ Use in Min/Ma
Calculation		Select Properties
{{DemandHistory:Mo 2}+{DemandHistory:	onth-1}+{DemandHistory:Month- Month-3})/3	DemandHistory:Month-0 DemandHistory:Month-1 DemandHistory:Month-2 DemandHistory:Month-3 DemandHistory:Month-4 DemandHistory:Month-5 DemandHistory:Month-6 DemandHistory:Month-7
Test Stock Code	C Test	
Ready	IN Re	-order Strategy 3 of 9

2. This example shows how the Qty of Lost Sales could be included in a Strategy to increase the 3month Demand History calculation.

GT	IN Re-order	Strategy Main	ntenance	_
	₫ C %	₩ 14	$\leftarrow \rightarrow \rightarrow \neg AFG (e$	₽₽₽₽₩₽
Code	3MthAv+Lost	Q		Use in Reorde
Description	3 Month Averag	e increased by qt	y of lost sales	Use in Min/Ma:
Calculation			Select Properties	
2}+{DemandHist Supply:Month-1	y:Month-1}+{DemandH tory:Month-3}+{SOStat }+{SOStatus:Could Not buld Not Supply:Month	us:Could Not Supply:Month-	 DemandHistory:Mo DemandHistory:Mo DemandHistory:Mo DemandHistory:Mo DemandHistory:Mo DemandHistory:Mo DemandHistory:Mo DemandHistory:Mo DemandHistory:Mo 	onth-1 onth-2 onth-3 onth-4 onth-5 onth-6
Test Stock Code		Q T	est	
Ready		IN	Re-order Strategy 2 of 9	

RE-ORDER CONSTANT MAINTENANCE

| System | Inventory | IN Reorder Constant Maintenance |



This will then appear within IN Reorder Strategy Maintenance.

GT		IN Re-o	rder Strategy Maintenance	_ 🗆 X
			$\mathbb{H} \left \leftarrow \leftarrow \rightarrow \rightarrow \right \neg \mathbb{P}$	4FG 🕞 📴 🤣 🖉 🖄 🕐
Code Descrip	tion	1	Q	Use in Reorde Use in Min/Max
Calcula	tion		Select Properti	es
				2ty 2ty oomicalOrder
Test Sto	ock Code		◯ Test	
Ready			There are 9 IN Re-order	Strategies

SYSTEM SCRIPT FOR LOST SALES

| System | Utilities | System Scripts | Apps4GTInventory Reorder Workbench | Optimise Reorder Workbench |

If you have enabled the Lost Sales option as part of the Reorder Strategies section in the App's Module Control, it is recommended that you schedule the system script Optimise Reorder Workbench to run weekly, through the Greentree task scheduler.

GT	System Scripts _	×
Standard Scripts Site Specific	Details	
Search -Apps4GT Inventory -Apps4GT Job Cost -Apps4GT General Ledger -Apps4GT Ked Assets -Apps4GT Fixed Assets -Apps4GT Purchase Orders -Apps4GT Inventory Recon -Pts/Rebates Module -Key Product Category -Apps4GT Inventory Reorder -Optimise Reorder Workbench -Apps4GT Email Tracker -Apps4GT Job Despatch Request -Trust Drawn Down -Master Organisation -Apps4GT Cash Management -IPM	This script will optimise the lost sales feature of reorder workbench by aggregating cancellation reasons for SO lines to inventory period summary objects	
Output to screen Output to file		
	<u>R</u> un script Cancel	

The App installs this system script which, when run, stores a summary of SO line Cancellation Reasons, at the period summary level. This allows the workbench to use an optimized search query rather than looking through every sales line at time of execution.

If the script hasn't been run within the last two weeks then the workbench will revert to the unoptimized approach of searching through all SO lines, which may cause delays or performance issues on very busy systems.

USER MAINTENANCE

| System | System Setup | User Maintenance |

On the Apps Menu Access tab of the user, unselect the relevant menu items for app 010002 if you do not want them to have access to any of the three menu options e.g. a user may have access to the Workbench itself but not to the Reorder Strategy or Constant Maintenance menus.

GT Preferences for user Su								er Sup	er	
Data entry Apps Menu Access		Apps	Apps for Greentree		Priv	Privileges		Business Analyst		
Report Sec General C		Email Signature							forms Audit	Access Security
App Code	Menu			Parent	Menu				Has Ac	cess?
000000	Apps Module Control			Apps For Greentree			V			
000000	Apps For Greentree			System			V			
010002	Inventory Reorder Workbench			Inventory			V			
010002	IN Reorder Strategy Maintenance			Inventory			~	1		
010002	IN Reorder Constant Maintenance			Inventory				ī -		